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SERMON.

—

- Zrpcueriam 1. 5.—Your fathers where are they ? and the
prophets do they bve forever 7
As the water of some mighty stream runs silently along to
the ocean, so passes the current of bumen life. The geners-
tions of men follow each other ih quick succession, &s wave
follows wave. All goto one place. The wise and the good,
as well as the foolish and wicked are involved in the same
common end. Where we stand 10 day, or within bearing of
the voice, other men long since deed worshiped God ; other
hearers filled the sanctuary ;—other prophets taught the peo-
ple. This hill echosd to their voices in praver and praise.
Here stood the gray haired prophet who for sixty years taught
the people knowledge ; and here stood the commarding, dig-
nified ambassador of the King of Kings, riveting the attention
and touching 1he heart while he reboked nnd exhorted with
all long suffering and doctrine. But all are gone. Their
bodiex like the temples where they worshiped are crumbled
into dust. ¢ Your fathers where are they ? and the prophets
do they Tive forever
It was the design of the inspired prophetin asking these
questions, to lead Isreel to reviow the past, and gain wisdom
from o knowledge of the character and end of their ancestors.:
There is po people but what may profit by such a review.—
By a due consideration of the past men are enabled wisely to
improve the present and form plans for the future, Time is
an ordeal thar like fire tries the character and works of all who
bave acted a part in the scenes of this life. It reveals both
the wisdom and folly of former generations by bringing to raa-
turity the fruits of their planting and watering and by thus per-
fecting their works enables bim who examines with care 1
determine its character.
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There are few more profitable subjects of study ;—for
there are connected with the history of every community hat
has existed for any comsiderable period, incidents and transac-

tions of an interesting and instructive character. To rescve
these from oblivion, is a work eminently calculated to benefit

“both the present and [utare generations.

Impressed with the belief that the religious history of this
town, as conoected with this chureh and congregation, would
profit both pastor and peaple, it is my design in the following
discourse to present this in as clear and (ull a wapner as time
end the materials will allow.

Many things of interest are doubtless lost for want of re-
cord ; and others the knowledge of which exists will not be
brought to view for want of time apd opportunity to investi-
gate and preseot them in proper light.  Yet encugh has been
fornd and will be presented to lead all who have a heart to
praize God, to magnify hiz name, and held him in grateful re-
membrance, for his kindness 1o our fathers and predecessors.

This town, which originally embraced Grefton, Milibury
apd paris of Upton, Northbridge and Acburo was purchased
of the Indians sometime previous 1o 1704. A part
of this tract of Jand called Hassanemisco was reserved by the
Indiaps for a settlement—thiz, wilh scme smell additions now .
forms the town of Grafion. In the year 1704 the Goverpor,
Council and Assembiy of the province confirmed the purchase
and made a grant of the Jands 1o the proprietors upon certain
conditions, emong which was this : #¢ That they settle a town
of thirty femiltes end o minisier upen seid lands within seveo
years after the end of the present war with the Indians.” It
is worthy of special notice that in laying the foundation of the
town and giving it existence provision was meda for the reli-
gious instruction of the people. Chr Puritan sncestors well
understood the principle, that the knowledge and practice of
virtue was the surest and richest source of temporal prosper-
ity.~The war to which reference was had in the grant, was
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the war with the Freoch in Queen Aone’s reign. In this war
the Indians throughout 1he Country were generally excited by
the French to eogage. Many of the [routier settlements were
entirely broken up and the growth of others greatly retarded.
Peace was established in 1713 and the country had rest. In
the spring of 1715 measures were taken for the immediate
settierment of the town; and in the winter following three
families wintered in the plece. To promote and expedite
the settlement the proprietors mede a grant of 4000 acres of
1and to the first thirty setders. This grant was made M%rch
18 & 19, 1715, and at the same time the proprietors agreed
to be at ball the expense of building a meeting house, and
supporting a minister for four years. Encoursged by thése
propesals—there was soon found a sufficient oumber of fami-
Kes to setiie in the town in order to secure to the proprietors
the grant by the government.—The frst town meeling was
held Dwee. 2d, 1715 at the dwelling house of Capt. Jobn
Biockwell. A prominent object of the mecling was to pro-
vide for the establishment of the gospel ministry. At the
same time overiores were made by & Commitiee of the pro-
prietors relating to the © settlement of the warship of God in
this town.”  In March following a meeting was held at which
measures were adopted for building a meeting house.  T'his
was erected the same season though there is no record of the
precise time of its commencement ngcomptetion, The fourth
town meeting beld March Tih, 1720 was convened in the
meeting house. Thus (i less than one yesr and a half from
the time the inhabitants first met in & civil capacity they had
erected a house for the worship of God. Bearcely had they
provided rude shelters for their temporal comfort before mak-
ing provision [or their eternal good.

The first church in this town was formed in the Autumn of
1720, end originally consisted of ten members—all males.
‘"The records of this church for the first eight years are not
known to exist, having been carried away by the first mipis-
ter upon his dismission ; conseguently we areunable 1o ascer-
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tain the basis upon which the church was formed, except by
subsequent transactions.

In Bept. 1725 the members © renewed their solemn cove-
nant with God and one with another.” The second declara-
tion in the Covenant is as follows :

“ We declare our sericus belief of the christien religion as
contained in the sacred scriprores and with suck o véew ihere-
of as the confession of faith in our churches has exhibited,—
heartily resolving to conform our lives unto the rules of this
holy religion as lang g3 we live in the world.” T'he re-
mainder of the Cobenant is the same with some slight varia-
tions as that now in use.

This act evidaniy shows that the church originglly adopt-
ed as the basis of their discipline and faith, the plaiform, so
called, which was drawn up by the Synod assembled at Cam-
bridge, in 1648, and confirmed by the government of the
provioce in the same year. 'This Synod instead of framing
a confession of (aith for themaelves ** whelly agreed with that
which had then lstely been set forth by the assembly of di-
vines at Westminister.” The platform of discipline they
drew says Gov. Winthrop ““accordiog te the general prac- -
tice of the churches.” It appears evident from this that the
basis of this church was strictly puriten in its faith and disci-
pline. The church from its foondetion has adhered strietly
to congregational privcigles. Tradition says it wes attach-
ment io these which occesioned the diffieolty with the first
pastor end led to his dismission.  And this tradition receives
support from the fact thet when they calied their second pas-
tor it.wgs upon condition that ha would be setiled according
to congregational usage.

The Confession of Faith adopted by the church, embraced
the docirines set forth in the Westminister Catechism. Aan
abridgement of which was long taught in the schools of 1he
Province, and slterwards of the Commonwealth,—-The pre-
sent Confession of Faitk, which for substance is the same,
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being merely an epitome of that contained in the Cambridge
Platform, was not adopted and used in the admission of mem-
bers until April 1811, ‘There has been no important devia-
tion from the original basis. The church in this respect has
maiateined its integrity.

#c On the 9th day of Nov. 1720, the Reverend Mr. John
McKinsiry was ordained Pastor over them as a Congregation-
al Church, they calling him thereto and calling ia the help of
gister churches. ;

The Rev. Mr SBwift of Framingham gave him the charge
end the Rev. Mr. Thatcher gave him the Right Hand of fel-
lowship. The Rev. Mr. Baxter, Pastor of Medfield—the
Rev. Mr. Breck, Pastor of Mearlborovgh—ile Rev. My,
FPrentice, Pastor of Lancaster, and the Rev. Mr. Dor, Pas-
tor ef Mendon, assistants sent to on the occesion mentioned, ™

It it is not known that during Mr. MeKinstry's ministry
there was any special religiows interest ; though it is evident
there must bave been some atiention 10 the subject of religion,
as in the eight years of his labors there was an addition of
forty-four members, Some more than tweniy of these were
. by profession. Soon after his settlement, difficulties arose
between 1he minister and people, probebly in relation to the
goveroment angd discipline of tbe church. Mr. MeKinsury
was a presbyterian from Scotlend, ond the church strictly and
firmly congregational. This propared the way for differences
of opinion : and as both were unyielding, the result was alien-
etion of affection.

Oct. 12th, 1726, a Council of geven churches, represented
by their pestors and delegates was called by the town 1o
judge of mauer of difference between the minister and
the people.” 'The result of this Council is net known.

This iz the only council ever called to adjust difficnl-
ties between this pecple end their pastor, The matter of
. difference not being settled to the satisfaction of both parties,

* Ch. Record Yol {.
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Mr. McKinstry was dismizsed Eep:.t 2d, 172%  The trans-

action of the town in relation to this event is thus recorded.

#<< Pursuant to an sgresment with Mr. John MeKinstry to
be dismissed from preaching in Buiton—at & town meeting
legally named and held at the meeting house in Sutton, put to
vote to see whether the town would dismiss Mr. John Mc

Kinstry from preaching here in SButton ; and it passed in the '
affirmative and there was not any vote in the negative.”

Mr. McKinstry was born in Seotland and eduested at the
University of Edenburgh. He contipued in the minisery
among s people nearly eight years. He was & man of con-
siderable briliancy and popular talent.  After his dismission
he removed to Ellington, Cédnr., and was settled as pastor of
the church in that place, where he probably died. ,

The Nov. following the dismission of Mr. McKinstry, Mr.
David Hall was invited 1o preech.—He continuad to supply
the pulpit during the winter, and on the 7th of March, 1729
the chorch invited him ta become their pastor ; & Committee
was appointed to lay the proceedings of the church before
the Town and request their conaurrence. The Town mest-
ing was held March 26th when the inhabitants ¢ yvoted to
choose Mr. David Hall for their minister and teacher to set
tle in the work of the ministry among them.”

Mr. -Hall accepted the invirtation and was ordained Ont.
15th 1729. 1% The Rev. Mr. Throop of Woodsiock be-
gan with prayer. The Rev. Mr. Williams of Weston
preached a sermon from Ist Thess. 5: 12—13. The Rev.
Mr. Bwilt of Framingham gave the solemn charge. The
Rev. Mr. Campbell of Oxford, gave the right hand of fellow-
s]u"?.”

The ministey of Mr. afierwards Dr. Hall was continued
for a long period and upusually blessed among this people.
‘When he setded, the church consisted of forty-nine members,

* Town Record Vol. 1.
t Ch. Record ¥ol. lat.



